
NOTICE OF A REGULAR MEETING 
 
Pursuant to Section 54954.2 of the Government Code of the State of California, a Regular meeting of 
the City of Tracy Planning Commission is hereby called for: 
 
Date/Time:  Wednesday, June 26, 2013 
   7:00 P.M. (or as soon thereafter as possible) 
 
Location:  City of Tracy Council Chambers 
   333 Civic Center Plaza 
  
Government Code Section 54954.3 states that every public meeting shall provide an opportunity for 
the public to address the Planning Commission on any item, before or during consideration of the 
item, however no action shall be taken on any item not on the agenda. 
 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
ROLL CALL 
MINUTES APPROVAL  
DIRECTOR’S REPORT REGARDING THIS AGENDA 
 
ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE - In accordance with Procedures for Preparation, Posting and Distribution of 
Agendas and the Conduct of Public Meetings, adopted by Resolution 2008-140, any item not on the agenda 
brought up by the public at a meeting, shall be automatically referred to staff.  If staff is not able to resolve the 
matter satisfactorily, the item shall be placed on an agenda within 30 days 

1. OLD BUSINESS 

2. NEW BUSINESS 

A. RECOMMENDATION TO THE CITY COUNCIL FOR APPROVAL OF AN 
AMENDMENT TO THE RESIDENTIAL DESIGN SECTION OF THE CITY OF TRACY 
DESIGN GOALS AND STANDARDS – CITY INITIATED 
 

B. REPORT OF GENERAL PLAN CONSISTENCY FOR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 
PROGRAM PROJECTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2013/2014 THROUGH FISCAL YEAR 
2017/2018 - APPLICATION NUMBER DET13-0002 

3. ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE 
4. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
5.  ITEMS FROM THE COMMISSION 
6.  ADJOURNMENT 

 
Posted:  June 20, 2013 
 

The City of Tracy complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act and makes all reasonable accommodations 
for the disabled to participate in public meetings.  Persons requiring assistance or auxiliary aids in order to 
participate should call City Hall (209-831-6000), at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Any materials distributed to the majority of the Planning Commission regarding any item on this agenda will be 
made available for public inspection in the Development and Engineering Services department located at 333 
Civic Center Plaza during normal business hours.   



 
MINUTES 

TRACY CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, June 12, 2013 

7:00 P.M. 
CITY OF TRACY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

333 CIVIC CENTER PLAZA 
 
CALL TO ORDER   Chair Ransom called the meeting to order at 7:04 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE Chair Ransom led the pledge of allegiance 
 
ROLL CALL   Roll Call found Chair Ransom, Vice Chair Sangha, Commissioner Johnson, 
Commissioner Mitracos, and Commissioner Orcutt.  Also present were staff members Victoria 
Lombardo, Senior Planner, Kimberly Matlock, Assistant Planner, Bill Sartor, Assistant City Attorney 
and Jan Couturier, Recording Secretary.  
 
MINUTES APPROVAL  
Chair Ransom requested a review of the May 22, 2013 minutes and asked for comments. 
Commissioner Johnson moved that the Commission approve the May 22, 2013 minutes. 
Commissioner Sangha seconded; all in favor, none opposed. 
 
DIRECTOR’S REPORT REGARDING THIS AGENDA – Victoria Lombardo, Senior Planner advised 
that Bill Dean was presently working on the Cordes Ranch project and was unavailable.   
 

ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE - None 

1. OLD BUSINESS – None 

2. NEW BUSINESS 

A. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION 
FOR A PLACE OF WORSHIP AT  125 GANDY DANCER DRIVE – APPLICANT IS 
ROBERT M. KRENIK FOR CALVARY CHAPEL TRACY AND PROPERTY OWNER 
IS DAVE HUMPHREY FOR HUMPHREY DEVELOPMENT, LLC. - APPLICATION 
NUMBER CUP13-0003 

Chair Ransom reviewed Agenda Item 2A. 

Kimberly Matlock, Assistant Planner, provided the staff report by advising that the proposal was for a 
place of worship in a light industrial area, Industrial Area Specific Plan, and that churches are 
conditionally permitted.   She reviewed the location of the building and that the area has the 
appearance of an office complex.  She then discussed the types of uses that were being proposed 
and advised that the applicant wished to request joint use parking to assure compliance with parking 
requirements.   

She closed by requesting that Planning Commission grant the Conditional Use Permit and authorize 
Joint Parking for the use. 

Chair Ransom then brought the discussion back to the Commission for comment.   

Commissioner Johnson asked about the outside activities that were referred to as occurring six times 
a year and asked if the applicant would need to ask for a Conditional Use Permit for each occurrence.  
Ms. Matlock referred to the Plan Set and indicated that those types of activities were included in the 
application and that all other activities would be held inside the building.  She added that should there 
be other types of activities; they would require a temporary use permit. 



Planning Commission Minutes 
June 12, 2013  
Page 2 
 
Chair Ransom asked about the existing business on site and if the hours of that business and the 
applicant’s joint parking requirement would conflict.  Ms. Matlock advised there would be no conflict. 

Commissioner Mitracos asked if the existing manufacturing business was the Property Owner.  Ms. 
Matlock advised that it was. 

Commissioner Orcutt stated he would abstain from voting due to his membership in the church. 

Chair Ransom opened the meeting to public comment. 

Rob Krenik, the Pastor for the applicant, read a letter from Humphrey Development, the Property 
Owner, to the City of Tracy which advised of their approval of the proposed use; stating that it would 
be of benefit to the location largely based on hours of use. 

Chair Ransom returned the meeting to the Commission.  Commissioner Orcutt asked about the 
requirement for the number of bathroom facilities for the number of people in attendance. Ms. Matlock 
advised that issue is a requirement of the California Building Code and Mr. Sartor advised that the 
issue would be addressed during the permit process.  Commissioner Mitracos commented that the 
Planning Commission approves the land use not the building.  

Commissioner Johnson moved that the Planning Commission approve the Conditional Use Permit 
application for a place of worship at 125 Gandy Dancer Drive and authorize joint use parking, based 
on the findings and subject to the conditions as stated in the Planning Commission Resolution dated 
June 12, 2013 (Attachment C).   Commissioner Mitracos seconded; all in favor with Commissioner 
Orcutt abstaining.  
 

B. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER AN APPLICATION FOR A CONDITIONAL USE 
PERMIT APPLICATION FOR AN EDUCATIONAL AND INSTITUTIONAL FACILITY 
AT 510 WHISPERING WIND DRIVE. APPLICANT AND PROPERTY OWNER IS 
EDGEWOOD CORPORATE CENTER, LLC. APPLICATION NUMBER CUP13-0004 

Chair Ransom reviewed Agenda 2B and requested the staff report. 

Ms. Matlock reviewed the proposal to open an educational and institutional facility in an Industrial 
Areas Specific Plan zone which would require a Conditional Use Permit.  Therapeutic Pathways will 
employ between 35 to 50 staff and treat up to 50 clients.  Typical hours of operation would be Monday 
through Friday from 8 am to 6 pm.  The institution would be compatible with the dental use already in 
existence at this location and the other buildings throughout the complex.   

On March 27, 2013 the Planning Commission determined that the off street parking requirement for 
educational facilities would be one space per staff person on site plus one space per transit vehicle.  
She advised that the proposal met that requirement.   

Ms. Matlock concluded by stating that staff believed that the proposed use would be appropriate for 
this location. 

Chair Ransom returned the meeting to the Commissioners for comment.   Commissioner Orcutt asked 
if there would be adequate space for the vehicles that would be used to transport the clients.  Ms. 
Matlock indicated the applicant had verified this. 

Commissioner Johnson asked if it the present space was vacant.  Ms. Matlock advised that it was.  
He then asked if the usual notification radius was used for the public hearing.  Ms. Matlock advised 
that it was. 



Planning Commission Minutes 
June 12, 2013  
Page 3 
 
Chair Ransom asked if the reference to the parking requirement dated March 27, 2013 was related to 
the Cerebral Palsy application at that meeting.  Ms. Matlock advised that it was.  Chair Ransom then 
asked for clarification on the location of the project which was provided by Ms. Matlock. 

Chair Ransom opened the public hearing at 7:23 p.m.   

Lane Borges of Borges Architectural Group of Roseville introduced himself and advised that his firm 
had been the original architect for this location.  He clarified that the number of staff would be 35 – 50, 
but they would not all be there at the same time.  He further stated there would be a large surplus of 
parking.  He also advised that the buses would be mini buses which would service the clients.   

Commissioner Johnson asked if there would be significant tenant improvements.   Mr. Borges 
indicated that there has never been any tenant improvements to the building as it had not yet been 
occupied further advising that everything would be brand new.  Commissioner Johnson then asked if 
there would be special requirements due to the use.  Mr. Borges advised that this location would be 
classified as private school not requiring anything special.   

Commissioner Mitracos asked about the services. 

Coleen Sparkman, Director of Therapeutic Pathways reviewed the services provided by the 
organization; the age range of their clients being from infants to adolescents.  She advised that they 
work with clients who require help with being integrated into the community and they partner with 
schools to bring them back into the public school system.   

Commissioner Johnson asked about the skill level of the staff.  Ms. Sparkman advised that many 
employees were college students who were provided additional training and that the client/staff ratio is 
one on one.   

Vice Chair Sangha asked whether Therapeutic Pathways offered internships.  Ms. Sparkman advised 
that they do.  

Chair Ransom closed the public comment session at 7:30 and requested further comment from the 
Commissioners.  

A motion was made by Commissioner Orcutt to approve the Conditional Use Permit for an 
educational and institutional facility at 510 Whispering Wind Drive for the applicant of Edgewood 
Corporate Center, LLC application number CUP13-0004.  Vice Chair Sangha seconded.  Chair 
Ransom asked if the resolution should be incorporated; there was some additional comment from 
Commissioner Mitracos.  Mr. Sartor advised that the motion was fine as stated and clarified that Vice 
Chair Sangha had seconded the motion.  All in favor; none opposed. 

 

3. ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE - None 
 
4. DIRECTOR’S REPORT - None 
 
5.  ITEMS FROM THE COMMISSION Commissioner Mitracos asked about the status of Tracy 

Hills project.  Ms. Lombardo advised that it would be some time before it will come before the 
commission due to the applicants’ schedule. 

 
 
 
 



Planning Commission Minutes 
June 12, 2013  
Page 4 
 
6.  ADJOURNMENT 

Commissioner Johnson moved to adjourn at 7:34 p.m. 
 
 

 
_______________________________
 CHAIR   
 

___________________________________ 
 STAFF LIAISON  
  



AGENDA ITEM 2A 
 

REQUEST 
 

RECOMMENDATION TO THE CITY COUNCIL FOR APPROVAL OF AN 
AMENDMENT TO THE RESIDENTIAL DESIGN SECTION OF THE CITY OF TRACY 
DESIGN GOALS AND STANDARDS – CITY INITIATED 
 

DISCUSSION 
 

On October 15, 2002, the City Council approved the City of Tracy Design Goals and 
Standards.  The Design Goals and Standards are intended to assist developers in 
understanding the level of architectural design that is required for approval by the City.  
The Design Goals and Standards also assist City staff in evaluating project applications.   
 
This proposed amendment to the Residential Design section of the Design Goals and 
Standards is intended to add some clarity and flexibility to a few of the standards.  In 
particular, this amendment would clarify the minimum number of house designs and add 
some flexibility regarding the combinations of different floor plans and elevations.  The 
proposed amendment would also clarify the guidelines for achieving a sufficient housing 
mix (i.e., number of times each house is used within a subdivision) and provide some 
added flexibility.  The proposed amendment would also add some flexibility regarding 
requirements for garage setbacks.  The proposed changes occur on pages 3, 4, and 5 of 
the Residential Design section of the Design Goals and Standards (See Exhibit 1 to the 
attached Draft Planning Commission Resolution, Attachment A). 
 
Environmental Documentation 
 
The proposed amendment is not a project within the meaning of the California 
Environmental Quality Act because it does not have the potential for causing a 
significant effect on the environment. (CEQA Guidelines, 14 California Code of 
Regulations, §15061(b).) 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend that the City Council 
approve the proposed amendment to the Residential Design section of the City of Tracy 
Design Goals and Standards. 
 

Prepared by:  Scott Claar, Associate Planner 
Reviewed by: Bill Dean, Assistant Development Services Director 
Approved by: Andrew Malik, Development Services Director 
 
ATTACHMENT 
 

A:        Draft Planning Commission Resolution  



barbarah
Typewritten Text
Attachment A































                          June 26, 2013 
RESOLUTION ___________ 

 
RECOMMENDING CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE 

RESIDENTIAL DESIGN SECTION OF THE CITY OF TRACY DESIGN GOALS AND 
STANDARDS 

 
 WHEREAS, On October 15, 2002, the City Council approved the City of Tracy 

Design Goals and Standards; and  
 
WHEREAS, On April 15, 2008, the City Council approved an amendment to the 

Design Goals and Standards to make some minor edits and establish design criteria for 
enhanced vapor recovery (EVR) equipment at gas stations; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City initiated a proposed amendment to the Residential Design 

section of the Design Goals and Standards to add some clarity and flexibility to a few of 
the standards; and  

 
WHEREAS, The proposed amendment is related to minimum number of house 

designs, housing mix, and garage setbacks; and  
 
WHEREAS, The proposed amendment is not a project within the meaning of the 

California Environmental Quality Act because it does not have the potential for causing a 
significant effect on the environment (CEQA Guidelines, 14 California Code of 
Regulations, §15061(b).); and 

 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission reviewed the proposed amendment to 

the Residential Design section of the Design Goals and Standards on June 26, 2013;   
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission 

recommends that the City Council approved the proposed amendment to the Residential 
Design section of the Design Goals and Standards, as shown in Exhibit 1. 
 

 
* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 
 

 The foregoing Resolution 2013-______________ was adopted by the Planning 
Commission on the 26th day of June 2013, by the following vote: 

 
 
AYES:  COMMISSION MEMBERS: 
NOES:  COMMISSION MEMBERS: 
ABSENT: COMMISSION MEMBERS: 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSION MEMBERS: 

 
      ________________________ 
            CHAIR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________ 
STAFF LIAISON 



AGENDA ITEM 2B 
 

REQUEST 
 

REPORT OF GENERAL PLAN CONSISTENCY FOR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 
PROGRAM PROJECTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2013/2014 THROUGH FISCAL YEAR 
2017/2018 - APPLICATION NUMBER DET13-0002  

 
DISCUSSION 
 

Background 
 
Government Code Section 65103(c) requires the City’s planning agency to annually 
review its Capital Improvement Program (CIP) for its consistency with the City’s General 
Plan.  The City adopts a Capital Improvement Program, which is a comprehensive multi-
year plan for the development of the City’s capital facilities and improvements.  The plan 
identifies all capital maintenance, facilities, and improvements needed within the next 
several years.  
 
Analysis 
 
The City’s CIP is a list of proposed expenditures from construction, maintenance, and 
improvements to capital facilities including streets, buildings, infrastructure, parks, the 
airport, and other public facilities.  The proposed CIP for fiscal year (FY) 2013/2014 
through 2017/2018 are divided into the following categories: 
 

• General Government and Public Safety Facilities 
• Traffic Safety 
• Streets and Highways 
• Wastewater Improvements 
• Water Improvements 
• Drainage Improvements 
• Airport and Transit Improvements 
• Parks and Recreation Improvements 
• Miscellaneous Projects 

 
The following analysis provides a brief description of each CIP project category, the 
types of projects contained therein, and the description of consistency with the City’s 
General Plan goals, policies and actions.  A project is considered to be consistent with 
the General Plan if it furthers the Plan's objectives and policies and does not obstruct 
from their attainment. 
 
General Government and Public Safety Facilities 
This category includes the new construction, maintenance and rehabilitation of City 
facilities, including the Boyd Service Center expansion, new fire stations, and a new 
animal shelter.  Upgrades and maintenance of existing facilities and equipment are also 
included.  The projects described above are consistent with and implement the following 
objective found in the Public Facilities and Services Element of the General Plan. 
 
 



Agenda Item 2B 
June 26, 2013 
Page 2 
 

Report of General Plan Consistency:   
Objective PF-4.1 Support the needs of the community through the construction and 

maintenance of public buildings, such as City Hall, community 
centers, libraries and the public works facility. 

 
Traffic Safety 
This category involves the maintenance and upgrading of the City’s existing traffic 
signals as well as the installation of new intersection improvements and traffic signal 
improvements to ensure adequate, safe, and efficient movement of traffic throughout the 
City.  The projects described above are consistent with and implement the following 
objective found in the Circulation Element of the General Plan. 
 
Report of General Plan Consistency: 
Objective CIR-1.6  Maximize traffic safety for automobile, transit, bicycle users, and 

pedestrians. 
 
Streets and Highways 
The Streets and Highways category of projects encompasses the new Eleventh Street 
Bridge, new I-205 freeway interchanges, and various roadway reconstruction, extension, 
and widening.  Replacement of the Eleventh Street Bridge is also included in this 
category.  The projects described above are consistent with and implement the following 
goal found in the Circulation Element of the General Plan. 
 
Report of General Plan Consistency: 
Goal CIR-1 A roadway system that provides access and mobility for all of 

Tracy’s residents and businesses while maintaining the quality of 
life in the community. 

 
Wastewater Improvements 
Maintenance of and improvements to the City’s wastewater infrastructure and treatment 
facility are included in this category.  Some specific improvements include upgrades, 
extensions, and replacements to wastewater treatment lines and equipment, expansion 
of the wastewater treatment plant, wastewater recycling lines, and wastewater discharge 
permit studies.  The projects described above are consistent with and implement the 
following goal and objective found in the Public Facilities and Services Element of the 
General Plan. 
 
Report of General Plan Consistency: 
Goal PF-7 Meet all wastewater treatment demands and federal and State 

regulations. 
 
Water Improvements 
Water projects include the purchase of water supply and replacement of water lines 
throughout the City and water supply purchase.  The projects described above are 
consistent with and implement the following goal and objective found in the Public 
Facilities and Services Element of the General Plan. 
 
Report of General Plan Consistency: 
Goal PF-6 Adequate supplies of water for all types of users. 



Agenda Item 2B 
June 26, 2013 
Page 3 
 

Objective PF-6.2 Provide adequate water infrastructure facilities to meet current 
and future populations.  

 
Drainage Improvements 
This category of projects includes storm drain line replacements, a new storm drain line, 
and channel improvements.  These encompass the storm drain replacements, drainage 
improvements, and upgrades to a pump station.  The projects described above are 
consistent with and implement the following objective found in the Public Facilities and 
Services Element of the General Plan. 
 
Report of General Plan Consistency: 
Objective PF-8.2 Provide effective storm drainage facilities for development 

projects.  
 
Airport and Transit Improvements 
The maintenance and upgrades to the Tracy Airport, transit system improvements, and 
bus replacements are included in this category.  Projects include an airport master plan 
update, installation of hangars, runway repairs, transit and ParaTransit bus 
replacements, and fire protection water supply improvements.  The projects described 
above are consistent with and implement the following goal and objective found in the 
Circulation Element of the General Plan. 
 
Report of General Plan Consistency: 
Goal CIR-4 A balanced transportation system that encourages the use of 

public transit and high occupancy vehicles.  
Objective CIR-1.6 Maximize traffic safety for automobile, transit, bicycle users, and 

pedestrians.  
Objective ED-5.1 Support the City’s Airport Master Plan 
 
Parks and Recreation Improvements 
This category consists of park and civic amenity construction, improvements and 
maintenance.  Some recreational improvements include improvements related to the 
Holly Sugar Sports Park, bikeway improvements, and equipment improvement park. The 
projects described above are consistent with and implement the following goals found in 
the Open Space and Conservation Element and the Public Facilities and Services 
Element of the General Plan. 
 
Report of General Plan Consistency: 
Goal OSC-4 Provision of parks, open space, and recreation facilities and 

services that maintain and improve the quality of life for residents. 
Objective PF-4.2 Provide sufficient library service to meet the informational, cultural, 

and educational needs of the City of Tracy. 
 
Miscellaneous Projects 
Projects in this category include management of various development projects and 
planning documents.  The projects described above are consistent with and implement 
the following goals found in the Community Character Element of the General Plan. 
 
 



Agenda Item 2B 
June 26, 2013 
Page 4 
 

Report of General Plan Consistency: 
Goal LU-1  A balanced and orderly pattern of growth in the City. 
Goal ED-2  Support for and promotion of existing businesses. 
 
Environmental Document 
 
This report of consistency with the City’s General Plan is exempt from CEQA, pursuant 
to CEQA Guidelines Section 15061, stating that CEQA only applies to projects which 
have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission report that the Capital Improvement 
Program Projects are consistent with the goals, policies and actions of the City’s General 
Plan. 
 

MOTION 
 

Move that the Planning Commission report that the Capital Improvement Program 
Projects are consistent with the goals, policies and actions of the City’s General Plan. 

 
 
Prepared by: Kimberly Matlock, Assistant Planner 
 
Reviewed by: Bill Dean, Assistant Development Services Director 

  Kuldeep Sharma, City Engineer 
 
Approved by: Andrew Malik, Development Services Director  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment A — Capital Improvement Projects List for FY 2013/2014 through FY 2017/2018 



barbarah
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A









































































































































RESOLUTION PC 2013-_____ 
 

REPORT OF CONSISTENCY WITH THE CITY OF TRACY’S GENERAL PLAN GOALS, 
POLICIES AND ACTIONS FOR THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM FOR FISCAL 

YEAR 2013/2014 THROUGH FISCAL YEAR 2017/2018 
APPLICATION NUMBER DET13-0002 

 
 WHEREAS, City staff will provide a proposed Capital Improvement Program to City 
Council in 2012 for budget adoption for Fiscal Year 2013/2014 through Fiscal Year 
2017/2018; and 
 
 WHEREAS, City staff has analyzed the Capital Improvement Program to ensure the 
consistency of the proposed projects within the Capital Improvement Program with the goals, 
policies, and actions of the City of Tracy’s current General Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission conducted a public meeting to review and 

consider the Capital Improvement Program on June 26, 2013. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby reports the 
Capital Improvement Program for Fiscal Year 2013/2014 through Fiscal Year 2017/2018 is 
consistent with the City’s General Plan goals, policies and actions. 
 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *  
 

 The foregoing Resolution 2013-_____ was adopted by the Planning Commission on 
the 26th day of June, 2013, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  COMMISSION MEMBERS: 
NOES:  COMMISSION MEMBERS: 
ABSENT: COMMISSION MEMBERS: 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSION MEMBERS: 
 
            
         ______________________ 
        Chair 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________ 
Staff Liaison 


	FINAL - Proposed Amendment to DGS.pdf
	REQUEST
	DISCUSSION
	RECOMMENDATION
	ATTACHMENT
	PC RESO -  Amendment to the Design Goals and Standards.pdf
	RESOLUTION ___________


	FINAL - DET13-0002 CIP GP Item.pdf
	REQUEST
	Reso - DET13-0002 CIP GP Conformity FY13-14 thru 17-18.pdf
	APPLICATION NUMBER DET13-0002





